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Statement of Special Interest

i. Summary and significance

The attraction of Brighton as a seaside resort and the followers of the Prince Regent
saw the pressure for development in Brighton increase during the mid-18" century.
Economic prosperity and road improvements enabled development to rise up the
chalky valley sides of the South Downs.

Development had already commenced to the north side of Edward Street with
terraced dwellings rising to higher ground, affording views toward the sea and rolling
Downs countryside. The coombe and ridges of the Downs offered a natural
topography suited to the landscape of a park and in contrast to the more rigid
arrangement of earlier developments to the south, its curvilinear form dictated the
pattern development of roads that today sweep around its perimeter and rise up along
chalky ridges.

The main body of the conservation area emerged as a result of a speculative
development - a residential park surrounded by detached villas. The park was
intended to be for the exclusive private use of the occupants of the new villas.

The planned residential development with a park as its central focus was once
contained by high flint and brick walls along rear boundaries, sections of which still
exist today. It was orientated to benefit from views of the sea or the Downs. In the
early 20™ century low plinth walls and railings were erected around the park but were
later removed, presumably for the war effort.

A small number of buildings were actually designed and built in the early 19" century,
including the surviving gates to the south of the Park, the Pepperpot and the Garden
Temple, and Q u e e RadksVilla (formerly Pennant House, then Pennant Lodge and
also Pennant Villa), and the remnants of the former Royal Spa. These are considered
contribute positively to the character, appearance, identify and significance of the
area.

Its prevailing character is of late Victorian and Edwardian villas which instil the sense
ofagardenvillagea nd ué& | nThisserseodplace is reinforced by the

landscaping within the park, street trees and landscaping within private gardens.

ii. Key elements of character

Character Feature Contribution to significance

Street plan and Surviving early 19™ century street plan to southern
distinctive hierarchy end of conservation area, contrasting with planned
of streets early 19" century curvilinear arrangement of the park

with housing around, completed in the early
Edwardian period. Suburban development to the
northern arc laid out in terraces of housing dating from
the late 19" and early 20" centuries.

Key views, including Key views are afforded along Egremont Place toward
views of landmarks the Egremont Gate and entrance to the Park. Long
and toward the sea views are also achieved of the sea over rooftops. Key
views are available across the park. Equally there a
key views from the park to the surrounding properties.
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and from within the park. From higher ground toward
the sea. Where buildings that act as landmarks and
focal buildings are in such views, there presence and
role is reinforced.

Landmark buildings A number of buildings and follies are noted as being
landmarks, drawing attention to themselves and
positively contributing to the identity of the area. These
also assist in orientation and wayfinding. and include
the two gateways at the southern end of the park; the
Pepperpot; the Clocktower; the Church of St. Luke; St.
L u k @r@mery School. Other buildings are considered
to create inter-mediatory markers that make a positive
contribution include, for example, St . Lukeos
Park Hill Evangelical Church, the Spa, and No.20
Hayden Lodge, East Drive.

Townhouses The prevailing building types are residential dwellings
ranging from detached and semi-detached dwellings
within the confinement of the planned park
development; terraced dwellings beyond to the north
and south. The most notable periods include early 19"
terraces along Egremont Place, detached mid-19"
century villas, to late 19" century ltalianate villas,
semi-detached Edwardian villas and terraced housing.

Buildings for religion Two places of worship are located within the
conservation area - the listed Church of St. Luke
whichdo mi nates the corner of
and Queenbs Park Terrace.
Church sits to the south side of Park Hill and is
considered to be a building of note.

Buildings for St. L u k @rdmemry School, along with its Swimming

education Pool and the former Caretakers House are located at
the northern end of the conservation area and occupy
a |l arge site on St. Lukebo
Queenbdbs Park Rise. The Ro

located to the south, within the Park and sits adjacent
to the remaining structure of the former Spa.

Public buildings Public buildings are confined to those within the Park -
the Café, the WCs and the tennis pavilion.

Architectural Details Although some buildings have experienced a loss of
architectural detailing, where details survive they add
visual and architectural richness to the building and
street scene. These include mouldings to
stucco/rendered facades such as v-jointed ashlaring;
cornices between floors and parapets, moulded door
surrounds, dentilation, decorative metal balcony
railings and wooden balconies on robust decorative
brackets; ornate entrance porches, fretted boards and
mouldings to Edwardian villa windows, doors and
contained in gables, terracotta finials and plaques.

Public Realm Queenbdbs Park itself 1is th
that forms the focus for the conservation area. The
park occupies a coombe with its steep chalky sides
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creating a natural bowl and containment of the space.
It has a strong visual and physical presence that
creates a sense of place and identity at the heart of
the conservation area.

A number of streets retain original granite kerbs,
guadrants, granite block to drainage channels and
cast iron drainage grates. In certain locations concrete
kerning has been introduced particularly where
pavements have been built out as part of traffic
management schemes.

Some original cast iron lamp posts with swan neck
lanterns remain. Some are listed and some are locally
listed, including those within the park itself.

Boundaries and Traditional boundary treatments including the former
entrances Attree Villa walls, the containing high brick and flint
wal | s of §tolkrenderes sdllsavtitrerailings

surmounting to Egremont Place, as well as surviving
brick walls, piers and railings to the Edwardian villas
around the park and party walls.

Traditional tiled thresholds, stepped approaches and
paths adds visual richness to the streetscene where
surviving.
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1.6

Introduction

Purpose
The aim of the Character Statement is to:

9 to define the special architectural and historic interest that justifies the

designation of the conservation area;

to sustain or enhance the significance of the area in planning decisions;

to identify those elements that contribute positively to the character and

appearance that should be preserved or enhanced for the enjoyment of this and

future generations; and

T to identify issues that detract from the
character, in order to inform the preparation of management proposals in future.

1 The Statement will also help to raise public awareness of the qualities that make
the Qu e e RadksConservation Area a special place.

1
1

By addressing the existing character of the area, the Statement helps to ensure that

future changes respect its special interest. Issues that may affect the conservation of

the Qu e e RabksConservation Area are noted in Section 7. This document should

al so be read in conjuncti aonawiitom tMaen ag@uneeart
(July 2017) which relates specifically to the park.*

History of designation

Conservation areas are designated in order
historic interest of an aread The Q u e e RavksConservation Area was first

designated in 1977 and covers 18.56 hectares of which 7 hectares relate to the park

itself which is a Registered Historic Park and Garden, at the centre of the area. The

existing boundary is shown on Figure 1. The park is encircled by housing

spanning from the early 19" i 21% centuries, A number of o6parkd stru
designated as listed buildings including entrance gates, railings, walling, and the

clocktower.

Policy context

Conservation areas are found throughout the country and have become a popular

and accepted way of preserving the countryd
with the type of area designated varying enormously.

While the listing of individual historic buildings began in 1944, the power to designate

0 aas ef special architectural or historic interest the character or appearance of which
it is desirabl e t3wasfistea arintte Cioic Amenitiesact c e 6
1967 and since then some 10,000 conservation areas have been designated in
England and Wales.

The original definition remains the same in current legislation i Section 69 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. The main
consequences of designation are that:

1 Planning permission is required for the demolition of buildings
9 Notice must be served on the Council where works to trees are proposed

lacta and Dominic Col eQLaends aPar ArChnsecvat 6on Management
2 planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

3 Section 69 - Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
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1 The Council must pay special attention to the character and appearance of the
conservation area when considering planning applications
1 Permitted development rights are reduced.

1.7 These points are explained in more d%tail [
The aim in exercising these controls is to ensure that what makes the area special is
not harmed by proposed changes.

1.8 Local authorities are encouraged to support their conservation areas with a clear
statement of the special architectural and historic interest that justifies their
designation. The production of this appraisal satisfies the requirements of the
legislation and provides a firm basis for assessing applications for development.

1.9 Section 72 of the 1990 Act requires local authorities, to pay special attention to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing conservation areas when considering planning
matters. This does not necessarily stifle the scope for creative design provided the
objectives of legislation and policy are met without harming the character and
appearance of the conservation area.

1.10 Conservation areas may include a range of heritage assets, such as listed buildings,
scheduled ancient monuments, registered parks and locally listed buildings. In the
case of listed buildings, Section 66 of the 1990 Act places a statutory duty on Local
Planning Authorities to have special regard to preserving the special architectural and
historic interest of both the listed building and its setting.

111 Designation also raises awareness of an are
foster local pride in the locality. While conservation areas do not prevent change,
designation does ensure that the character of the area can be taken into account in
the interest of the community as well as addressing the interests of the developer.

Public consultation

1.12 This document was commissioned by Brighton & Hove City Council. The draft was
informed by a Steering Group of local stakeholders. It is the subject of a four-week
period of public consultation. Comments received at all stages will help inform the
final document.

4 http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/sites/brighton-hove.gov.uk/files/Conservation%20Strategy%202015.pdf
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2. Landscape setting

Location

2.1 The Qu e e RavksConservation Area is located to the north west of the city centre,
west of the Steine and north of Edward Street. The southernmost part of the
conservation area is within 5 minutes walking distance of the city centre.5

Geology and topography

2.2  Brighton is built on the sedimentary rocks and is underlain by pure White Chalk
limestones of Newhaven Chalk Formation.® The uplifting and gentle folding of the
chalk is overlain with the solid geology of clay, silt, sand of the Lambeth Group, as
irregular beds on eroded chalk. A strand of superficial deposits of clay, silt, sand and
gravel are found within the coomb of Qu e e Rabks

2.3  Topography is an important factor as the land rises from both west to east and from
south to north. The approach to the conservation area rises steeply from Upper Rock
Gardens and Edward Street / Eastern Road. The steep inclines lead through the
southern entrance gates into West Drive and South Avenue where the topography
gently undulates and dips as it falls into the coomb within which the park is contained.
Outside of the park, Park Hill rises steeply along its southern perimeter from east to
west.

2.4 Housing within the perimeter of the park sits on rising ground. This is particularly
notable along East Drive, West Drive and North Drive,c ont i nui ng t o Queen
Rise. To the west and north the |l and rises to t
Road and northwards to Brighton Racecourse. To the east, lands rise and fall toward
Freshfield Road and Whitehawk Hil Road. The park itself covers approximately 7
hectares within the conservationareac ont ai ned bsyded&auth-Eacingt e e p
chal k % alleyéo.

2.5  The nature of the topography is such that views are achieved across the park, from
one side of the road to the other. Dwellings around the park are afforded views either
of the park, the sea or the Downs. The enclosure of the park by ridges on three sides
channels views southwards toward the sea.’

2.6 The topography is reflected in the built form by raised and stepped ground floors,
stepping parapets, eaves and roof levels of dwellings rising and falling across the
hills. As a result key buildings and landmarks such as the southern Entrance Gates,
the Clock Tower, Pepperpot, the Churchof St Luk edsl St . Hhoolkagetas Sc
greater degree of prominence and benefit from greater visibility in key views.

Setting

2.7 The Qu e e RaiksConservation Area has an urban context with the planned park as
its central, key feature. It is located on the rising lands of South Downs where
topography is a key feature of the area. This elevated landscape and setting is

SBHCC (2009) 6Characterisation Studybd
6 British Geological Survey
"Harris, BnB&O6BbopiwvghtHi storic Character Assessment Reporto
8acta and Dominic Col eQLaeands aPar ArChmnsecvat ioon pdmanagement
211
9 ibid, para 2.1.1
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2.8

compl emented by the citybés coast al | andscap
achievable from higher ground over roofscapes.

The more intimate setting of the park is generally of a lower density residential
environment with predominantly medium-large family homes with front and rear
private gardens. The surrounding area, including the southerly approaches are more
urban in character, of a greater density and tighter urban grain comprising primarily of
terraced housing arranged with a high degree of uniformity and consistency.
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3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Historical development

Overview

Qu e e Rdikds located in an area that developed to the north east of the original

fishing settl ement

60l d Townbo. Th

French raids.

e

of Brighthel mstone, also Kk
e X pand e dboeerhe diffihi gher
the 13" or 14" century as a result of maritime erosion and destruction caused by

t own

The fashion for taking spa waters and for sea-bathing had already begun in the mid-
17" century. The influence of the dissertation of Dr Richard Russell of Lewes in 1750
helped the town reinvent itself and prosper.

By the 1760s, the Old Town was nearing capacity and the eastern side was

established as the area where resort development would be concentrated, mainly due

to its proximity to East Street (where most resort facilities were clustered) and the

Steine as well as proximity to the sea. Under the Brighton Town Act of 1773,

commissioners were appointed to oversee paving, lighting and street-cleaning. Road
improvements reduced the journey time from London to about five hours and the town

saw rapid expansion. Within three decades Brighton was transformed into the
successful se

nati onds most f ashi

onabl e and

Little Laine stretched as far as what is now Bedford Street. It was divided into Cliff
Furlong and Upper Furlong with a deakwayéthat became St James® Street dividing
the two. Each furlong was in turn divided into strips of land called ¢gaulpiecesé The
furlongs and dpaulpiecesdwere themselves divided by walkways called deakwaysd
The deakwaybto the south of St. J a me s 6 s
the north became Edward Street. As the area was gradually developed builders
arranged streets along the whole width of the furlong so that today we can see in the

present layout of the streets.

Street

b

ecame Mari ne

As a result of the restrictions that this imposed on the buying and development of
land, most developers assembled long rectangular blocks of land, which stretched the
length of a furlong. This resulted in the series of parallel straight streets, built in
terraced form for reasons of economy. Examples of this survive at Egremont Place

and Park Street.

Qu e e rPérlsand environs

The land the Q u e e RaiksConservation Area covers was previously laid to fields,
predominantly for sheep. The land was bisected by bridleways with limited

development to the north of St. Ja me s 6 s

[Sptedoei@antly comprises a post -

1880 suburb set out on, and largely coincident with, the open fields of Hilly Laine.
Building began rapidly in the south-west corner of this area in 1800-10 and by the
mid-19" century the area was built up with a dense grid of streets and small houses
for workers, shopsandbusi nesses.

1824, becoming public in 1891-2.

Mar chant 6s map

of

1815

Queenbds

shows

Park opened a

mited develo

(see figure 2). By 1822 Egremont Place and Egremont Street (now Tillstone Street)
had been developed by the Earls of Egremont. These streets ran perpendicular to
Edward Street rising up the chalky downs. Nothing much existed further northwards

until the development of the Park.
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Figure 27 Marchant® 1815 map

The early 1882 park and its lodges had been laid out by John Armstrong as part of a
speculative development. Armstrong had leased land on the eastern side of Steine
Valley with the intention to develop it as a new Regency suburb. The central coombe
(valley bottom) was enclosed and laid out as parkland circumnavigated by a carriage
drive. The land was already known as Brighton Park i a subscription park. *°

Each dwelling was to stand within its own gardens with uninterrupted views of

the varied scenery of the Park, Downs and sea. " Pr i or t o Ar mstrong?
ownership, the park was treeless and waterless but saw a transformation to an

enclosed park, laid out for tree and pleasure gardens, influenced by the pattern

of Vauxhall Gardens in London. It was also a model that can be seen

el sewhere along the south coast including
Leonards, albeitthatitwas8y ear s bef ore Queenbés Park ha
complement of villas.*?

Thomas Attree, a Brighton Solicitor, having acquired the lordship of the Manor of

Atlingworth, acquired land north of Eastern Road in 1825 and the park. Attree

became the first clerk and treasurer to the town Commissioners and also acted for the

Princeof Wales.Havi ng been inspired by, Retgtede &8s Par |
was to build a residential park surrounded by detached villas. The fashionable

architect Charles Barry was commissioned to design the park and estate. Attree

insisted that building would only be permitted around the perimeter of his private park

and that the centre should remain an area solely for recreation.

OHorl ock, C. (2017) o6Brighton from Ol d Photographsod
11 Brighton Gazette, 23 December 1824 and 6™ January 1825

123cta and Dominic Col eQLaeandds aPar ArChnsecvat ion pdanagemen
42,4617 4.8

Page 13|66



3.11 The first building built around the park was at Pennant Villa (also Pennant
House), nowcalled Queends Par k Vil l arMrQCowellvaas desi gn
modest villa but transformed to a much larger building in 1845. At t rave 6 s
house - Attree Villa - was designed in 1830 and under construction in 1842. It was
located at the northern edge of the park and noted as being a fitting residence for
someone who had done much for the town and helped it prosper. It was designed
with three tiered terrace gardens below the south and east fronts and benefited from
long views down through the valley and the park to the sea.

3.12 Attree House was demolished in March 1972, despite being listed Grade IlI. A large
section of the former walls exist to the northsidleonQu eend6s Par k Terrace
gazebo still stands & alsodssitned baBarrytahdebuildiriPe pper p
1830 as an observatory and to house the flue and steam engine designed to raise
water for Attree Villa from the well below.™

3.13 At t r e e dlad the fosndation for the park as it is today. This concept is depicted
inapaintingdated 1834 r ef erred to as O0®hQudeRatksBarryos
1834086 ( s&. €hafles Bary commissioned Thomas Allom to produce the
painting to show off the eccentric variety of possible architectural styles designed to
tempt well-heeled followers of the Prince Regent to the new planned estate. The
inscription below Alomé s wat ercol our states

fi Ae building Plots are confined to the space between the Upper Drive and the

Boundary Wall. They contain an average depth of 250 feet, and may have any

amount of frontage as desired. The owner of each plot is at liberty to build

according to his Design, subject to the approval of the Proprietor 6 The interior

of the Park within the Drive is not to be built upon, but left free and for ever

appropriated for lawn and Plantations. The trees of the latter are of ten years
growth and average from fifteen to twent

3.14 However, it was 80 years before development around the park was complete
with Edwardian villas and houses built on vacant sites.

3.15 The park was planned with a high flint and brick wall to enclose the park estate. Much
of the wall exists today and can be seen particularly to the west side forming the
boundaries with housing on Queends Park Roa
and gatehouses. Two of the gates remain today at the south end of the site,
through arched gateways, Egremont Gate at the north end of Egremont Place,
and the second off the north end of Park Street, named Park Gate. Of those
that were removed, the gate near the Pepperpot was known as Atlingworth
Gate.

13 The Arcana of Science and Art 1836 pp 50/51
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Figure 37 Map of Park c. 1826

3.16 Five subsidiary points of access lead in from West Drive, North Drive, East Drive and
South Avenue, the roads which encircle the park perimeter. ** Egremont Gate was
designed by Charles Barry in 1829. It was re-rendered in 1890 at the time that
Qu e e n 6 swashheesemted to the town for public use.

3.17 In 1863 the Pepperpot was used by George Duddell as a print works i Tower Press.
The tower was also used as an observation post during WWII and later as a scout
troupe headquarters,an ar ti st 6 s by19903 a publia gaorrenierttee MThe
ground-level extension was a public convenience and, since the late 20" century, it
has been sealed and remains unused.

14 Historic England, List Entry Number 1001319
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